
Minutes of the October 27, 2009 Planning Commission 
 
Meeting called to order at 7:05 P.M. by Vice-Chairman Martin Sokolich.  Planning Commission 
members Margaret Haven and Jeff Garrett were present.  The following were also in attendance:  
Nick Cappella, Zoning Administrator and Nancy Gearhart.  
 
Approval of the Minutes 
A motion for approval of the August minutes was made by Margaret, seconded by Jeff, unanimously 
approved. 
 
Martin stated that he wanted to clarify the current status of the Planning Commission before moving 
on to any agenda items.  As vice-chairman, he would chair the meeting in the absence of the 
chairman; the chairman (Toby Gearhart) has resigned.  According to the Zoning Ordinance, the vice-
chairman does not automatically step into the position of chairman; that is a matter on which to be 
voted.  Normally, the chairman would be named at an election at the first of the year.  Martin has 
received a letter from the Town Commission President stating he has been appointed chairman of the 
Planning Commission, but Martin says he thinks it’s up to the Planning Commission to make that 
decision.  Not only is the Planning Commission short a member, but the Town Commissioners are 
short a commissioner until an appointment is made.  Martin asked if there were any comments or 
discussion regarding this matter, specifically regarding tabling the election of the Chairman until the 
table is full.  Margaret said that she thinks they have no problem with that.  A motion to table the 
election of a chairman until November was made by Margaret, seconded by Jeff. 
 
Old Business 
Letter from State Highway regarding Ridgeway Estates – Nick stated that he spoke with Mr. King 
from State Highway Administration (SHA) and he was wondering why no one from the town has 
contacted him about what is/has been happening at Ridgeway Estates.  He also said that the letter 
dated 29 September is the second or third letter that has been sent by SHA.  Per Nick, SHA has also 
sent the same letters to the developer and had no response.  Martin asked if the Oxford address was 
the correct address for the developer; Nick stated that Missy had mentioned the same issue.  There 
was discussion about the project.  Nick said he will gather for the next meeting, the past approvals 
and other information regarding Ridgeway Estates. 
 
New Business 
Sign Permit – Telephone Exchange Building – Martin stated that the sign for which the application 
was submitted has already been erected and that the Planning Commission was asked to address this 
issue out of turn; he would like to address that during the Roundtable discussion.  Martin said that 
addressing matters out of turn could possibly violate laws, and that somebody else’s emergency is 
not the Planning Commission’s probably, as cold as that might sound.  Martin asked Nick to provide 
more information about the sign issue.  Nick stated that any property abutting a state highway must 
receive approval or permits from SHA.  Nancy asked what setback is required; Nick said he wasn’t 
sure.  Nancy said that the setback is probably further than the sign.  Nancy if approvals were only 
needed from SHA and the Planning Commission for this particular sign.  She also said that the other 
(second) sign is no longer an issue.  There was some discussion and Martin asked for suggestions as 
to how the Planning Commission wanted to handle this issue.  Nick suggested referring to the 
section within the guidelines addressing signs.  He also said that the town can approve anything 
before SHA does, but the town won’t issue the permit until approval from SHA is received.  Nick 
also suggested addressing the temporary sign currently at the site.  There was additional discussion; 



Margaret made a motion to grant temporary approval for the sign until the next meeting,  Martin 
clarified the motion to grant temporary permission to the Caroline County Historical Society and the 
Ridgely Historical Society to erect an informational sign in front of the Telephone Exchange 
Building pending a letter of approval from SHA and meeting other requirements of the town’s sign 
ordinance (setback, graphic illustration), seconded by Jeff, unanimously approved. 
 
Commission Roundtable Discussion 
Proposed Sidewalk Café/Sales Legislation – Nick described the proposed legislation, explaining that 
it is a town ordinance, not a zoning ordinance, and deals with safety and permit application issues.  
Martin asked if the background of this ordinance is because the café operating in a ‘gray area’ 
whereas nothing expressly permits or prohibits the café’s current activity.  Martin asked if, as a 
result of the passage of this ordinance, the Planning Commission’s role would not be to approve the 
sidewalk seating, but review/approve whatever was necessary concerning the business.  Nick said 
that the Planning Commission could inform the business of the pre-approved zones or zones 
requiring Planning Commission approval.   Nick also said that once the ordinance is passed, all 
business affected will have to come into compliance.  There was some discussion and Martin asked 
when the ordinance is scheduled to be approved; Nick said that the Commissioners have been trying 
to approve it at each ‘next meeting’ for a little while now.  Martin suggested that if any Planning 
Commission members individually have comments; give those comments to the Commissioners.  
Nick stated the only comment he has heard is in relation to the $200 fee contained within the 
ordinance, but that fee can be changed by the Commissioners.   
 
Martin would like to have printed copies of the Comprehensive Plan available Planning Commission 
members, as well as in the town office.  He also suggested maybe having a work session to 
specifically address the changes that need to be made to Planning and Zoning documents.  Nick 
recommended looking at how the Planning Commission wants to change the Zoning Ordinance – by 
section, the entire document, etc.  He suggested taking a closer look at the Design Guidelines, 
because they are poorly written. 
 
Martin mentioned that the state recently passed a law requiring all Planning Commissioners to go 
through an educational process.  There was brief discussion. 
 
Nick asked if everyone received copies of the following letters:  a letter about Senate Bill 958/House 
Bill 921, a letter from Leo Stepp expressing his interest in serving on the Planning Commission, and 
a letter from Linda Epperly Glover (Commission President) to the Ridgely Volunteer Fire Dept. 
about the proposed new building on Sunset Blvd.  There was some discussion. 
 
Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:45. 
 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 

Missy Vanskiver 
Asst. Clerk   


